
Page 1 of 3  

 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: This meeting has been given public notice in 
accordance with the Section 25-19-106 of the Freedom of Information 
Act, in such form that will apprise the general public and news media 
of subject matter that is intended for consideration and action. 

 
II. INVOCATION – Pastor Will Lowry, St Theodore’s Episcopal Church. 

*** (See disclaimer below) 
 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE; 
 
 

IV. ROLL CALL:  Mayor Peter Christie, Aldermen Frank Anderson, John 
Flynn, Allen King, Becky Morgan, James Wozniak and Larry Wilson 

 
V. CITIZEN INPUT/PUBLIC APPEARANCES:  Please be advised that it 

is the policy of the municipality that there will be a three minute time 
period, per person, with time extension per the Chief Presiding Officer’s 
discretion; be further advised that there may be limited discussion on 
the information received, but no response or action will be made under 
public comment. 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: April 25, 2016 

 
VII. REPORTS: 

 
A. Monthly Financial Report – April, 2016 
B. Motion to Approve Finance Report- 

 
VIII. MOTION TO SUSPEND RULES: and read all proposed ordinances 

and resolutions on the agenda by title only. 
 

IX. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. ORDINANCE NO- AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 18-
20(b) OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE REGULATING THE 
DUMPING OF TREE CUTTINGS AND OTHER MATERIALS, 
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. (Third reading) 

 
MEETING: REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

DATE AND TIME: Monday, May 23, 2016 – 6:30 P.M. 
Bella Vista American Legion Post 341 

1889 Bella Vista Way (Hwy 71 & Kingsland Rd) 
Bella Vista, Arkansas 



Page 2 of 3  
B. ORDINANCE NO- AMENDING SECTION 2-106 OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO LIMIT 
THE SUBJECTS OF CALLED SPECIAL MEETINGS OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL. (Third reading) 
 

C. ORDINANCE NO- AMENDING SECTION 103-48(c) OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA 
CONCERNING KEY BOX REQUIREMENTS. (Third reading) 

 
D. ORDINANCE NO- AMENDING SECTION 109-3 DEFINITIONS OF 

TERMS AND USES IN CHAPTER 109 ZONING OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO EXCLUDE 
CAPTIVE-BRED MEMBERS OF THE FAMILY COLUMBIDAE 
(DOVES AND PIGEONS) FROM THE DEFINITION OF 
LIVESTOCK (Second Reading) 

 
E. ORDINANCE NO- AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO ADD RULES AND 
REGULATIONS FOR THE USAGE OF CITY PUBLIC-USE 
TRAILS, DECLARING AN EMERGENCY, AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. (Second Reading)  

 
F. ORDINANCE NO- ACCEPTING AND CONFIRMING 

EASEMENTS DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC ON PARCELS 15-
09383-000 AND 15-09380-000, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
G. ORDINANCE NO- AMENDING SECTION 2-345 SALE OR 

EXCHANGE OF PROPERTY OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO CLARIFY AMBIGUITIES. 

 
H. R2016- RESOLUTION-AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY 

CLERK TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH LUTTRELL 
CONSTRUCTION IN THE AMOUNT OF $88,164.00 FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF A ROADS MATERIAL BUNKER FOR THE 
STREET DEPARTMENT. 

 
I.     R2016- RESOLUTION- EXPRESSING THE WILLINGNESS OF 

THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO UTILIZE FEDERAL-AID 
TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM FUNDS. 

 
J. R2016-RESOLUTION- INCREASING SALARY LIMITATIONS 

FOR CERTAIN POSITIONS IN THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT BUDGET, AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES.  

 
K. R2016- RESOLUTION- EXPRESSING THE WILLINGNESS OF 

THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO SUPPORT A RECREATIONAL 
TRAILS PROGRAM GRANT APPLICATION BY THE 
NORTHWEST ARKANSAS TRAILBLAZERS, AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. 

 
 



Page 3 of 3  
L. RESOLUTION- AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF CERTAIN 

SURPLUS CITY PROPERTY OF A COMBINED ESTIMATED 
VALUE OF MORE THAN $10,000. 

 
 
 
 
 

MEETINGS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
• The next City Council Work Session will be Monday June 20,  2016 

at 5:30PM in the City Hall Conference Room. 
• The next Regular meeting of the City Council, Monday June 27, 2016 at 

6:30 PM at the Bella Vista American Legion Hall. 
• Planning Commission Work Session will be Thursday June 2, 2016 at 

4:30PM in the City Hall conference room. 
• Planning Commission Regular Meeting will be June 13, 2016 at 

5:30PM in the City Hall conference room.  
• Public Safety Committee Meeting will be June 8, 2016 at 9:00AM in the 

City Hall Conference room. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
*** Please note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals 
through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request this service, please contact the City Clerk at 
479-876-1255. 
*** Any invocation that may be offered at the start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private 
citizen, to and for the benefit of the Council. The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been 
previously reviewed or approved by the Council and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the Council 
in part or as a whole. No member of the community is required to attend or participate in the invocation and such decision 
will have no impact on their right to actively participate in the business of the Council. Copies of the policy governing 
invocations and setting forth the procedure to have a person deliver an invocation are available upon request submitted to 
the Bella Vista City Clerk. 



Page 1 of 3 
 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – April 25, 2016 

Called to order at 6:32 by Mayor Christie 

Invocation given by Pastor Lee McClanathan of New Life Christian Church. 

Pledge of Allegiance recited by all. 

Roll Call of Council: Alderman Flynn, Anderson, King, Wozniak Wilson. Alderman Morgan is absent.  

Citizen Input: Bob Mathis, 14 Lochilpheld spoke as a Realtor about his concerns about the Accessory 
building Ordinance being too restrictive to fit the property in Bella Vista.  

John Philliber, 1 Quantock Hills Drive expressed similar concern.  

Selby Cole, 3 Bobwith Ln spoke about a safety concern he has concerning Trafalger & Bobwith. This is on 
a corner and visibility is limited and he would like to suggest that it be looked at and the possibility of 
cutting back some trees to provide a better line of sight.  

Linda Lloyd, 102 Fairway Drive spoke about some concern about the size and placement of accessory 
structures and how they might affect property values.  

Mary Schillaci, 1 Dunedin Place spoke about the Ordinance concerning accessory structures. She showed 
examples of how these buildings can be very complimentary to the property when placed correctly. 
Because of the lot they have they would not comply with the proposed ordinance.  

Chris Nelson, 1 Herrington Dr. feels that the ordinance proposed is too restrictive. Alderman Anderson 
asked for some clarification.  

Paul Holstrom 23 Ettington, had questions about the fence restrictions. He felt it would adversely affect 
what he wants to do on his lot. Alderman Flynn made some comments to him.  

Tom Richards 63 Dogwood Drive, spoke about his concern that the council may not be getting the 
answers they are looking for concerning the Country Club Estates. He asked that the city ask the right 
questions and that the paperwork is correct.  

Julie Hull, 1 Horwich Lane. She feels that the ordinance proposed is too restrictive. She suggested it be 
left as is.  

Richard Utecht spoke about the fence issue and that is too restrictive to allow him to do what he desires 
for safety for his children. He is against the ordinance.  

Roger Norbeck 61 Portsmith Dr. talked about the issues as to how they relate to the situation before the 
city was incorporated. He commended the council for trying to get this right for everyone. 

Approval of Minutes from the March 28, 2016 meeting. Motion to approve by Alderman Anderson, 
second by Alderman Wozniak. Show of hands vote; 5 ayes, 0 nays. Approved. 

Financial Report for March: Mayor Christie presented the highlights from the Finance Report. A Motion 
was made by Alderman King, seconded by Alderman Flynn to approve as presented. Show of hands 
resulted in approval by vote of 5 ayes, 0 nays. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Motion to suspend the rules and read all Ordinances and Resolutions by Title only was made by 
Alderman King, second by Alderman Flynn. Roll Call Vote- King, Anderson, Flynn, Wilson & Wozniak aye. 
Alderman Morgan was absent. 

ORDINANCE NO- AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 18-20(b) OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE 
REGULATING THE DUMPING OF TREE CUTTINGS AND OTHER MATERIALS, AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. (Second reading) Alderman Wilson offered some documents for the council to 
consider. This will move to third reading next month. 
 
ORDINANCE NO- AMENDING SECTION 2-106 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
BELLA VISTA TO LIMIT THE SUBJECTS OF CALLED SPECIAL MEETINGS OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 
(Second reading) Will move to third reading. 
 
ORDINANCE NO- AMENDING SECTION 103-48(c) OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
BELLA VISTA CONCERNING KEY BOX REQUIREMENTS. (Second reading) This 
 Also will move to third reading. 

ORDINANCE NO- AN ORDINANCE AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 109-166 REGULATING 
ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND SECTION 109-248 REGULATING FENCE LOCATION, AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. (Second reading) This ordinance has caused much concern with the residents and the 
Mayor suggested this be tabled and go back to be further reviewed by staff and council. A motion 
was made to table this for 90 days. It will come back on second reading. Motion by Alderman King, 
second by Alderman Wilson. More discussion was held on this and Alderman Flynn suggested it 
be defeated and be tabled for 60 days instead. Roll call vote was held defeated by vote of 1 aye, 
4 nays. At that point it was moved by Alderman Anderson, second by Alderman Flynn to table for 
two months and it would come back on second reading at the June meeting. Roll call vote resulted 
in 5 Ayes, 0 Nays. Ordinance tabled. 
 
ORDINANCE NO- AMENDING SECTION 109-3 DEFINITIONS OF TERMS AND USES IN CHAPTER 109 
ZONING OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO EXCLUDE CAPTIVE-BRED 
MEMBERS OF THE FAMILY COLUMBIDAE (DOVES AND PIGEONS) FROM THE DEFINITION OF 
LIVESTOCK (First Reading) after discussion and concerns brought up it moves to second reading. 
 
ORDINANCE NO- AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO ADD 
RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE USAGE OF CITY PUBLIC-USE TRAILS, DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. (First Reading) Alderman Anderson expressed 
concerns about where this Ordinance would apply. How are the other trails in Bella Vista policed 
and who does this. He thought that the POA should be involved in this to make it easier for people 
to understand the rules. Attorney Kelley explained the issue as to the difference between public 
& private. Alderman Flynn asked if there were penalties for violation as a part of this. Attorney 
Kelley explained that there is a general provision in place to cover this. Mayor Christie will 
approach the POA about this and it will be looked at before the next reading. 
 

ORDINANCE NO-2016-08 
 AUTHORIZING BORROWING FUNDS PURSUANT TO ARKANSAS CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT 
78 FOR THE ACQUISITION OF A 2016 KME CUSTOM PUMPER FIRE TRUCK BY ISSUANCE OF A 
PROMISSORY NOTE; PROVIDING FOR SECURITY FOR THE REPAYMENT OF THE PROMISSORY NOTE; 
PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THE NOTE; DECLARING 



Page 3 of 3 
 

AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.  
A motion was made by Alderman Anderson, second by Alderman King to suspend the rules and 
move to third and final reading. Roll call vote. Ayes, Flynn, Wozniak, Anderson, King, Wilson 
(Morgan was absent) Nays: 0. Carried. The Mayor then read the Ordinance for the third time. 
Alderman Anderson then moved for adoption, seconded by Alderman Wozniak. Roll Call Vote, 5 
Ayes, 0 Nays. Passed. Alderman Anderson moved to adopt the emergency clause, second by 
Alderman King. Roll call vote was taken with 5 in favor, 0 against. Emergency clause in effect. 

 

R2016-17-RESOLUTION- GRANTING AN EASEMENT TO CARROLL ELECTRIC ON THE STREET 
DEPARTMENT SITE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. Community Development Director Chris Suneson 
explained the reason for this easement as well as its location. Motion to adopt made by Alderman 
Wozniak, second by Alderman King. All 5 Alderman present voted to adopt, no votes against. 
Alderman Morgan absent. Carried. 
 

R2016-18- RESOLUTION-AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT 
WITH DECCO PAVING INC. IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $955,000.00 FOR ASPHALT STREET 
RESURFACING AND OTHER STREET DEPARTMENT ASPHALT PAVING, AND FURTHER AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH VANCE BROTHERS INC. IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $650,000.00 FOR SLURRY STREET RESURFACING. Mayor Christie 
reported that included is the paving around the new streets dept. building. Motion to 
Approve by Alderman Wozniak, second by Alderman Flynn. All 5 Alderman voted for 
passage. No negative votes. Resolution adopted. 
 
There being no further discussion, the Mayor went through the announcements. 
 

MEETINGS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
• The next City Council Work Session will be Monday May 16,  2016 at 

5:30PM in the City Hall Conference Room. 
• The next Regular meeting of the City Council, Monday May 23, 2016 at 

6:30 PM at the Bella Vista American Legion Hall. 
• Planning Commission Work Session will be Thursday April 28, 2016 at 

4:30PM in the City Hall conference room. 
• Planning Commission Regular Meeting will be May 9, 2016 at 6:30PM 

in the City Hall conference room.  
• Public Safety Committee Meeting will be May 11, 2016 at 9:00AM in the 

City Hall Conference room. 
 

Meeting adjourned at 7:34PM 
 
 
 

 

City Clerk Wayne Jertson      Mayor Peter Christie 

 



BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
BELLA VISTA, AR 

    
 
  
MEETING DATE: March 28, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
 
AGENDA ITEM:          
 
ITEM TITLE: An Ordinance Amending Section 18-20(b) of the Municipal Code Regulating the 

Dumping of Tree Cuttings and Other Materials, and For Other 
Purposes 

 
SUBMITTED BY: Christopher Suneson, PLA  
 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION:  Under Ordinance 2008-03, the City adopted several provisions 
regulating nuisances including allowing the dumping of tree cuttings, tree trunks, fill dirt, and 
other materials to reclaim gullies and ravines. This ordinance was later codified in section 18-20(b) 
of the municipal code. The current language of this section reads: 
 

“The dumping of tree cuttings, tree trunks, fill dirt and other appropriate fill material may be permitted 
to reclaim gullies and ravines upon application to, and approval by, the city planning commission 
under the following conditions: 

(1) Written certification by the applicant that he is the legal owner of the property or that he has 
the written permission of the property owner. 

(2) Access must be completely restricted to the applicant only. 
(3) All material must be covered by fill dirt and smoothed over at intervals not to exceed two 

weeks. 
(4) Compliance with any drainage ordinance passed by the city. 

 
Failure to comply with the above conditions will be grounds for revocation of the permit and may result 
in the issuance of a citation pursuant to subsection (a) of this section. Any area currently used as a 
location for the dumping of stumps, vegetation waste or dirt at the time of the adoption of the ordinance 
from which this article is derived shall be exempt from the requirements of this subsection.” 

 
The City later adopted Ordinance 2011-14, which regulated land alteration activities including the 
filling activities that would allow the reclamation of ravines and gullies upon permit issuance from 
the Department. 
 
The legislation that follows would strike most portions of this section of code to eliminate potential 
confusion of 1) whether the planning commission or staff issues permits for these activities and 2) 
methods to obtain a permit to perform these activities. 
 
ATTACHMENT: ORDINANCE  RESOLUTION     OTHER  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of this ordinance. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 Motion to adopt  



ORDINANCE NO. 2016- __ 
 

City of Bella Vista, Arkansas 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 18-20(b) OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE REGULATING 
THE DUMPING OF TREE CUTTINGS AND OTHER MATERIALS, AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Ordinance 2008-03, regulating the dumping of tree 
cuttings, trunks, dirt, and other materials, which was latter codified to Section 18-20(b) of the municipal 
code; and 
 

WHEREAS, the section provides for residents to apply for a permit to reclaim gullies and ravines 
upon approval by the Planning Commission; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council subsequently adopted legislation under Ordinance 2011-14, which 
similarly and more completely regulates filling activities, which was later codified to Sections 107-373 
through 107-388; and 
 

WHEREAS, there is a conflict between the two referenced sections with regard to permitting 
authority regulating land alteration activities. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELLA 
VISTA, ARKANSAS: 

 
Section 1: That Section 18-20(b) of the municipal code shall be amended to read as follows: 

“(b) The dumping of tree cuttings, tree trunks, fill dirt and other appropriate fill material may be 
allowed to reclaim gullies and ravines upon obtaining a permit pursuant Sections 107-373 through 107-
388 of the municipal code. Failure to comply with the above conditions will be grounds for revocation of 
the permit and may result in the issuance of a citation pursuant to subsection (a) of this section. Any area 
currently used as a location for the dumping of stumps, vegetation waste or dirt at the time of the 
adoption of the ordinance from which this article is derived shall be exempt from the requirements of this 
subsection.” 

 

 

PASSED THIS ___ DAY OF ________________, 2016. 

 
Motion to adopt made by:  
Ayes:   
Nays:   
Motion:  

       
APPROVED: 

 
 
      ____________________________ 

Mayor Peter Christie 



ATTEST: 
 
       

________________________ 
Wayne Jertson 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
       

________________________ 
Jason B. Kelley, Staff Attorney  
 
 
Prepared by: Christopher Suneson, PLA, Director of Community Development Services 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
 

AMENDING SECTION 2-106 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO LIMIT THE SUBJECTS OF CALLED 
SPECIAL MEETINGS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

 WHEREAS, it is important for both the Mayor and Aldermen to have the ability to call 
special meetings of the City Council to conduct business that cannot be timely handled by waiting 
until a regularly scheduled meeting without risk to the public or additional financial expense to the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Ark. Code Ann. § 14-43-502 provides that the Mayor or any three (3) 
aldermen of any city may call special meetings of the City Council in a manner as may be provided 
by ordinance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a special meeting of the City Council should not be used to conduct business 
of the City Council which may wait until the next regularly scheduled meeting without placing the 
public at risk or causing additional financial expense to the City; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1:  Section 2-106 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Bella Vista, Arkansas 
is hereby amended so that after amendment, the Section shall read as follows: 

 
 

“Sec. 2-106.  Special meetings. 
 

(a) Call.  When in the best interests of the City, the Mayor may call a special 
meeting of the City Council.  In addition, any three (3) aldermen may call a 
special meeting of the City Council by signing and providing a notice to the 
City Clerk announcing a special meeting, and stating in the notice the agenda, 
date, time and location of the meeting.  Notification of special meetings, 
including the agenda, shall be made at least two (2) hours prior to the meeting.  
Such notification shall be made by personal service or by telephone to each 
member specifying the time, place and agenda of the meeting. 

(b) Purpose.  No special meeting shall be called for agenda items which may be 
considered at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council without 
placing risk to the public or additional financial expense to the City.  At any 
special meeting, no business other than that stated in the agenda for the special 
meeting shall be considered. 

(c) Cancellation.  Only the Mayor, or the three (3) alderman calling a special 
meeting, may cancel a special meeting.   

 



2 
 

  
  
 
 
 
 PASSED THIS ________ DAY OF __________________________, 2016. 
 
  
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       PETER CHRISTIE 
       MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
WAYNE JERTSON 
CITY CLERK 
 
Requested by:  Alderman Anderson         
Prepared by:  Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 



Send to City Attorney the week before required to send to City Clerk  
When City Attorney okays, send to City Clerk before noon on Thursday 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
BELLA VISTA, AR 

    
 
  
MEETING DATE: March 28, 2016 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution-2016-         
 
 
ITEM TITLE: Revising Municipal Code §103-48(c): Key Box Required 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Jennifer Bonner, Senior Planner   
 
 
SUMMARY:  To replace and codify language in order to standardize references to 

the type of key box required in the supplemental provisions of 
the fire code located in Municipal Code §103-48(c) 

 
 
ATTACHMENT: Ordinance    Resolution   Other  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Staff recommends approval of this resolution. 
 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to adopt  
 



 

PART II - LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCES 
Chapter 103 - BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS  

ARTICLE II. - CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS 
DIVISION 2. - FIRE PREVENTION CODE 

 
Sec. 103-48. - Supplemental provisions of the fire code.  
(a) Fire protection sprinkler systems. In addition to the requirements of Volume I and Volume II of the 

Arkansas Fire Prevention Code, 2012 edition, the following shall regulate the installation of fire 
protection sprinkler systems in the city: Any existing building which has an automatic sprinkler 
system installed shall have a water flow detection device on the riser of a wet pipe system or a low air 
detection device installed on the riser of a dry pipe system. These devices shall be electronically 
supervised and be monitored at all times by an approved fire alarm monitoring agency regardless of 
the number of sprinkler heads served.  

(b) Remote fire department connections (FDCs).  
(1) In all new construction where an automatic sprinkler system is required, the fire department 

connection shall be freestanding and remote from the building, equal to 150 percent of the height 
of the exterior wall as approved by the fire chief or his duly authorized designee.  

(2) All FDCs shall be equipped with a five-inch thread-less Storz brand connection and shall have a 
30- to 45-degree downward deflection.  

(3) Underground piping serving an FDC shall be equipped with a ball drip valve to ensure there is 
no standing water in the connection and that the piping does not freeze.  

(4) When, in the opinion of the fire chief or his duly authorized designee, an FDC is subject to 
vehicular damage, the FDC shall be protected as required by the Arkansas Fire Prevention Code.  

(5) All FDCs shall be marked by signage approved by the fire chief or his duly authorized designee.  
 (c) Key box required.  

(1) Purpose. The purpose of this key box requirement is to provide access to or within a structure or 
an area where it is unduly difficult because of secured openings, or where immediate access is 
necessary for lifesaving or firefighting purposes, or when hazardous materials data are required 
to be provided to the fire department by occupants of the structure.  

(2) Type of system. The Knox Box vault system is hereby adopted for use in the city.  
(3) Where required. A Knox Box shall be installed in all existing buildings which have an automatic 

alarm system which is monitored or has an automatic sprinkler system. The key box Knox Box 
shall contain those keys found necessary to provide emergency access and any other information 
as required by the fire chief, or a his duly authorized designee.  

(4) Location. The Knox Box shall be compatible with other key boxes located within the city so that 
the fire department shall have access to all key boxes through the use of only one key.  

(5) Responsibilities of property owner. The property owner is responsible to ensure that keys 
maintained within a key box Knox Box are those of the current type. When a change of locks 
within the building is necessary, the fire department shall be notified for appropriate placement 
of new keys in the key box Knox Box.  

(6) Expense. The Knox Box shall be installed at the owner's or occupant's expense.  
 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
 

AMENDING SECTION 103-48(c) OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA CONCERNING KEY BOX 
REQUIREMENTS 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA, 
ARKANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1:  Subsection (c) of Section 103-48 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Bella Vista, Arkansas is hereby amended so that after amendment, the subsection shall read as 
follows: 
 
       “(c)     Key box required.  

(1) Purpose. The purpose of this requirement is to provide access to or within a 
structure or an area where it is unduly difficult because of secured openings, or 
where immediate access is necessary for lifesaving or firefighting purposes, or 
when hazardous materials data are required to be provided to the fire 
department by occupants of the structure.  

(2) Type of system. The Knox Box vault system is hereby adopted for use in the 
city.  

(3) Where required. A Knox Box shall be installed in all existing buildings which 
have an automatic alarm system which is monitored or has an automatic 
sprinkler system. The Knox Box shall contain those keys necessary to provide 
emergency access and any other information as required by the fire chief, or a 
duly authorized designee.  

(4) Location. The Knox Box shall be compatible with other key boxes located 
within the city so that the fire department shall have access to all key boxes 
through the use of only one key.  

(5) Responsibilities of property owner. The property owner is responsible to ensure 
that keys maintained within a Knox Box are those of the current type. When a 
change of locks within the building is necessary, the fire department shall be 
notified for appropriate placement of new keys in the Knox Box.  

(6) Expense. The Knox Box shall be installed at the owner’s or occupant’s 
expense.”  

 
PASSED THIS ________ DAY OF __________________________, 2016. 
 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       PETER CHRISTIE 
       MAYOR 



2 
 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
WAYNE JERTSON 
CITY CLERK 
 
Requested by:  Mayor        
Prepared by:  Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
 

AMENDING SECTION 109-3 DEFINITIONS OF TERMS AND USES IN 
CHAPTER 109 ZONING OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF BELLA VISTA TO EXCLUDE CAPTIVE-BRED MEMBERS OF THE 
FAMILY COLUMBIDAE (DOVES AND PIGEONS) FROM THE 
DEFINITION OF LIVESTOCK 
 

 WHEREAS, it is desired to modify existing Code to permit the keeping of captive-bred 
members of the family Columbidae (doves and pigeons) in certain residential zones; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the current definition of livestock includes members of the family 
Columbidae (doves and pigeons); and 
 
 WHEREAS, removing members of the family Columbidae (doves and pigeons) from the 
definition of livestock will permit such animals to be kept in the R-1 zone as a domestic animal 
(bird); 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1:  Section 109-3 Definitions of Terms and Uses in Chapter 109 Zoning of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Bella Vista, Arkansas is hereby amended by amending the 
subpart (9) of the definition of Livestock so that after amendment, the subpart shall read as follows: 
 

(9) All captive-bred members of the family Anatidae (ducks).  
 
 
 PASSED THIS ________ DAY OF __________________________, 2016. 
 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       PETER CHRISTIE 
       MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
WAYNE JERTSON 
CITY CLERK 
 
Requested by:  Alderman King      
Prepared by:  Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ________________ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
 

AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELLA 
VISTA TO ADD RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE USAGE OF CITY 
PUBLIC-USE TRAILS, DECLARING AN EMERGENCY, AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES 

 
 WHEREAS, a new trail system is being constructed in the City which, when complete, 
shall constitute approximately forty (40) miles of City public-use trails; and 
 
 WHEREAS, certain rules and regulations regarding usage of City public-use trails are 
necessary to provide for public safety; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1:  The Code of Ordinances of the City of Bella Vista, Arkansas is hereby 
amended by adding a Chapter 27, Trails, which shall read as follows: 
 
 “Chapter 27 Trails. 
 
  ARTICLE I.  IN GENERAL 
 
 Sec. 27-1.  Applicability. 
 

 The provisions of this Chapter shall apply only to public-use City trails. 
 
Sec. 27-2.  Vehicle Restrictions. 

  
No gas or electrically powered vehicles (except maintenance vehicles or 

emergency vehicles) shall be driven or operated on any trail, with the exception that 
powered wheelchairs or other devices designed for and used by persons with 
disabilities shall be permitted. 

 
 Sec. 27-3.  Usage Rules. 
 

Users of trails shall follow the requirements of any signage posted on the 
trail, including, but not limited to, stop signs, yield signs, or other traffic/pedestrian 
control measures.   

 
Sec. 27-4.  Hours of Trail Operation.  Prohibition on Usage While Closed. 
 

(a)  Trails shall open at 5:00 a.m. and close at 10:00 p.m. each day. 



2 
 

(b) The Mayor, or the Mayor’s designee, may cause trails to be closed at 
any time for purposes of public safety, repair, or the issuance of a special 
event permit as provided for in Section 24-46, et seq.  The public shall 
be advised of any such special closure by available and reasonable 
means, including, but not limited to, appropriate signage. 

(c) No person may use or be present on any trail when it is closed, unless 
such presence or usage is pursuant to a special event permit issued by 
the City.  This prohibition shall not apply to persons crossing a trail 
while on a city street or other public right-of-way. 

 
Sec. 27-5.  Special Events. 
 
 During any permitted special event, the vehicle restrictions provided in 
Section 27-2 and the usage rules provided in Section 27-3 shall not apply to any 
segment of trail for which a special event permit has been issued.” 

 
 SECTION 2:  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  It is hereby determined that the need to provide 
public safety rules for the new public-use City trail system is immediate and necessary for the 
preservation of the public peace, health and safety.  Therefore, an emergency is hereby declared 
to exist, and this Ordinance shall take full force and effect from and after passage and approval as 
provided by law. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       PETER CHRISTIE 
       MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
WAYNE JERTSON 
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
JASON KELLEY 
STAFF ATTORNEY 
 
 
Requested by:  Mayor 
Prepared by:  Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 



BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
BELLA VISTA, AR 

    
 
  
MEETING DATE: May 23, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
 
AGENDA ITEM:          
 
ITEM TITLE: An Ordinance Accepting and Confirming Easements Dedicated to the Public on 

parcels 15-09383-000 and 15-09380-000, and for Other Purposes 
   

 
SUBMITTED BY: Christopher Suneson, PLA  
 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION:   The Planning Commission reviewed PLA-2016-23174 on May 9, 
2016, where it received a unanimous vote to accept the required easement dedications depicted.  
 
The survey instrument incorporated into the ordinance adjusts a property line between the two 
subject parcels. The original subdivision did not include any utility and drainage easements to the 
public, and the City’s subdivision regulations requires the dedication of easements when 
subdividing land.  
 
ATTACHMENT: ORDINANCE  RESOLUTION     OTHER  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff  recommends approval of this ordinance, and is requesting that the 
City Council waive the its normal three readings to expedite the dedication to the public as well as 
to accommodate a closing that is scheduled to occur just after the regular meeting. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 Motion to adopt  
 





ORDINANCE NO. 2016-____ 
  

ACCEPTING AND CONFIRMING EASEMENTS DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC ON 
PARCELS 15-09383-000 AND 15-09380-000, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

  
 WHEREAS, A.C.A. 14-301-102 requires that publicly dedicated easements 
within the City be accepted and confirmed by an ordinance specifically passed for that 
purpose; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed PLA-2016-23714 on May 9, 
2016, and unanimously recommended acceptance of the easements to the City 
Council. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Bella 
Vista, Arkansas: 
 
 Section 1: The public rights-of-way shown in the attached Exhibits ‘A’, which is 
made a part hereof, are hereby accepted and confirmed for public use.  

 
PASSED THIS ___ DAY OF ________________, 2015. 
Motion to adopt made by:  
Ayes:   
Nays:   
Motion:  

       
APPROVED: 

 
 
      ____________________________ 

Mayor Peter Christie 
 
ATTEST: 

 
       

________________________ 
Wayne Jertson 
City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
       

________________________ 
Jason B. Kelley, Staff Attorney  
 
 
Prepared by: Christopher Suneson, PLA, Director of Community Development Services 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
 

AMENDING SECTION 2-345 SALE OR EXCHANGE OF CITY 
PROPERTY OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELLA 
VISTA TO CLARIFY AMBIGUITIES 
 

 WHEREAS, the current Section 2-345 of the Code of Ordinances dealing with the sale or 
exchange of City property is unclear with regard to its intended meaning; and 
 
 WHEREAS, amending the section will provide much needed clarity for City 
administration; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1:  Section 2-345 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Bella Vista, Arkansas 
is hereby amended so that after amendment, the Section shall read as follows: 
 
“Sec. 2-345.  Sale or exchange of city property. 
 
 Municipal supplies, materials, or equipment deemed surplus to the needs of the City 
may be sold or exchanged as provided in this Section. 
 

(a) An item or combination of items of an estimated fair market value of less than 
$5,000 may be sold or exchanged by the Mayor. 
 

(b) An item or combination of items of an estimated fair market value of $5,000 or 
more may be sold or exchanged by the Mayor: 
(1) upon authorization by the City Council after competitive bidding; or 
(2) after a waiver by the City Council of competitive bidding, if competitive 

bidding is deemed not feasible or practical; or 
(3) at a public auction after authorization by the City Council.” 

 
 
 PASSED THIS ________ DAY OF __________________________, 2016. 
 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       PETER CHRISTIE 
       MAYOR 



2 
 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
WAYNE JERTSON 
CITY CLERK 
 
Requested by:  Mayor         
Prepared by:  Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 



Memorandum 
May 11, 2016 

To: Mayor Peter Christie and Bella Vista City Council 

From: Mike Button, City of Bella Vista Street Superintendent 

RE: Request for Bid, New Street Department Facility Road Materials Bunker 

    Requests for Bid were sent out to five different companies for the purpose of constructing a proposed 
new Road Materials Bunker for the New Street Department Facility. My estimate for this project was in 
the amount of $67,000.00, being part of the 2016 Street Fund account 52800. A total of 4 vendors bid 
the project with Luttrell Construction coming in as low bidder in the amount of $99,134.00 with other 
bids coming in at $104,636.00, $104,674.00 and $126,211.05. 

     One reason the project ended up higher than my original estimate was the fact that I originally 
calculated a thinner stem wall thickness than what the actual “engineered” drawings actually called for, 
which ended up thicker.  In order to stay closer on track to my original estimate, I negotiated with 
Luttrell Construction by two means; one by asking them to   bring the project cost down in general, and 
the other by actually shrinking the size of the Road Materials Bunker by a small percentage. Luttrell 
Construction has come back with a re-negotiated amount of $88,164.00. The additional funding of this 
project above and beyond my initial estimate of $67,000.00 can be achieved by savings incurred on 
other items in my 52800 account as well as account 100, being that of the 2.4-million-dollar loan from 
Arvest where I have also incurred savings from my original estimates on projects already in the works.  

    

   With that, I recommend that Bella Vista City Council award bid to Luttrell Construction in the amount 
of $88,164.00 for construction of a new Roads Material Bunker for the new Street Department Facility. 

    

    

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Mike Button 

City of Bella Vista Street Superintendent, 

 



City of Bella Vista 
STATE OF ARKANSAS 

 
INVITATION TO BID 

 
The City of Bella Vista, Arkansas will accept sealed bids on a: 
 

Road Materials Bunker (Concrete Stem Wall Design)  
 

Specifications may be obtained at the office of the Bella Vista City Hall, 101 
Town Center, Bella Vista, AR  72714 or call 479-876-1204 and a copy will 
be sent to you.  Sealed bids must be submitted to the of City of Bella Vista, 
c/o Mike Button, at 101 Town Center, Bella Vista, AR 72714 prior to the bid 
opening at 9:00am CST on Tuesday, May 10, 2016.  Envelope must be 
marked as follows:   Road Materials Bunker. 
 
Bella Vista reserves the right to reject any or all bids or any part thereof and 
to accept the bid that is in the best interest of the City. 
 
Bid price must include all cost, freight and any applicable taxes. 
 
Michael Button  
Street Superintendent 
 
Published: April 25, 2016 and May 2, 2016 
 

 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO ENTER INTO A 
CONTRACT WITH LUTTRELL CONSTRUCTION IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$88,164.00 FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A ROADS MATERIAL BUNKER 
FOR THE STREET DEPARTMENT 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA, 
ARKANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1:  The City Council of the City of Bella Vista, Arkansas hereby authorizes the 
Mayor and City Clerk to enter into a contract with Luttrell Construction in the amount of 
$88,164.00 for construction of a roads material bunker for the Street Department. 
 
 
 PASSED THIS ______ DAY OF ________________________, 2016. 
 
        

APPROVED: 
 
    
             
       ____________________________________ 
       Mayor Peter Christie 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Clerk Wayne Jertson 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jason B. Kelley 
Staff Attorney 
 
Requested by Mayor Christie 
Prepared by Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-___ 
 

EXPRESSING THE WILLINGNESS OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO UTILIZE 
FEDERAL-AID TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM FUNDS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Bella Vista City Council understand Federal-aid 
Transportation Alternatives Program Funds are available at 80% federal participation 
and 20% local match to develop or improve the Riordan Road Trail project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Bella Vista City Council understands that Federal-aid 
Funds are available for this project on a reimbursable basis, requiring work to be 
accomplished and proof of payment prior to actual monetary reimbursement; and  
 

WHEREAS, this project, using federal funding, will be open and available for use 
by the general public and maintained for the life of the project.  

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Bella Vista: 
 
 Section 1: The City of Bella Vista will participate in accordance with it designated 
responsibility, including maintenance of this project. 
 

Section 2: The Mayor of Bella Vista is hereby authorized and directed to execute 
all appropriate agreements and contracts necessary to expedite the construction of the 
above stated project. 

 
Section 3: The City of Bella Vista City Council pledges its support and hereby 

authorizes the Arkansas State Highway and Transportation Department to initiate action 
to implement this project. 

 
 
PASSED THIS ___ DAY OF ________________, 2016. 
 
Motion to adopt made by:  
Ayes:   
Nays:   
Motion:  

       
APPROVED: 

 
 
      ____________________________ 

ATTEST:      Mayor Peter Christie 
 
       

________________________ 
Wayne Jertson 
City Clerk 



 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
       

________________________ 
Jason B. Kelley, Staff Attorney  
 
Requested by: Mayor Christie 
Prepared by: Christopher Suneson, PLA, Director of Community Development Services 



BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
BELLA VISTA, AR 

    
 
  
MEETING DATE: May 23, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
 
AGENDA ITEM:          
 
ITEM TITLE: A Resolution Increasing Salary Limitations for Certain Positions in the Community 

Development Services Department Budget, and For Other Purposes
   

 
SUBMITTED BY: Christopher Suneson, PLA  
 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION:  The Community Development Services Department has 
experienced a greater inspection load than anticipated through the first part of 2016. For reference, 
the Department performed 1,550 inspections for all of 2014, and 1,886 inspection for all of 2015. 
Through April, the Department has performed 1,154 inspection year to date – in comparison to 527 
for the same period in 2015. Needless to say, the Department has roughly doubled in amount 
inspection performed. Anticipating this increase in workload, the Department budgeted for an 
additional inspector for 2016 to be hired at midyear. 
 
In addition, the Department budgeted for a trails coordinator to be hired at midyear. With the rapid 
construction of the soft surface trail system on the east side of town and the need to adequate 
maintain it, the Department is facing the need to hire a trail coordinator earlier than anticipated. 
 
With the earlier hiring of these two positions and the inability to retain a building inspector at 
current wage rate, the Department seeks to increase salary caps established in the 2016 budget. 
These increases in payroll and wages would be offset by budget savings in other line items within 
the Department’s budget.  
 
ATTACHMENT: ORDINANCE  RESOLUTION     OTHER  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval on the resolution. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 Motion to adopt  
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-___ 
 

INCREASING SALARY LIMITATIONS FOR CERTAIN POSITIONS IN THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT BUDGET, AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES   
 
 WHEREAS, the adopted Community Development Service Department budget 
provided for two building inspectors and a trails coordinator; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the inspection workload has exceeded projections, requiring the 
need to hire an additional building inspector earlier than anticipated; and  
 

WHEREAS, the construction of soft surface trails and their need for maintenance 
earlier than anticipated requires the hiring of the trails coordinator position earlier than 
anticipated. 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Bella Vista: 
 
 Section 1: The following salary caps, adopted in the 2016 Community 
Development Services budget, are hereby amended as follows: 

a. Chief Inspector  $45,000 
b. Building Inspector $40,000 
c. Trails Coordinator $42,000. 

 
Section 2: The adjustments for the increased costs in payroll and benefits line 

items shall be achieved through budgetary savings in other line items in the Community 
Development Services budget. 

 
 
PASSED THIS ___ DAY OF ________________, 2016. 
 
Motion to adopt made by:  
Ayes:   
Nays:   
Motion:  

       
APPROVED: 

 
 
      ____________________________ 

ATTEST:      Mayor Peter Christie 
 
       

________________________ 
Wayne Jertson 
City Clerk 



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       

________________________ 
Jason B. Kelley, Staff Attorney  
 
Requested by: Mayor Christie 
Prepared by: Christopher Suneson, PLA, Director of Community Development Services 



BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
BELLA VISTA, AR 

    
 
  
MEETING DATE: May 23, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
 
AGENDA ITEM:          
 
ITEM TITLE: A Resolution Expressing the Willingness of the City of Bella Vista Support a 

Recreational Trails Program Grant Application by the Northwest 
Arkansas Trailblazers, and for Other Purposes   

 
SUBMITTED BY: Christopher Suneson, PLA  
 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION:  In late April, the administration was approached by 
representatives of the Northwest Arkansas Trailblazers to support the organization’s application to 
the Arkansas Highway and Transportation Department (AHTD) for grant funding from the 
Recreational Trails Program (RTP) to construct a hard surface extension of the Razorback 
Regional Greenway through Bella Vista. 
 
As planned, the trail alignment would begin at the north end of Lake Bella Vista near the Veterans 
Wall of Honor. The trail would then run northward along the east side of Little Sugar Creek, 
crossing the creek flowing formerly known as the trout farm and running under the Mercy Way 
bridge. The trail would then cross westward over Little Sugar Creek, just north of the building in 
Sugar Creek Center containing Allen’s Grocery Store. The trail would terminate at the Bank of the 
Ozarks parking lot. 
 
If funded, the trail facility would be constructed at no cost to the City.  However, the RTP funding 
comes with the two requirements: 1) to provide public access throughout the life of the facility; 
and 2) to provide ongoing maintenance.  
 
The Northwest Arkansas Trailblazers do not have the capacity to provide ongoing maintenance, 
and intend to turn over the proposed trail to the City to meet these requirements. Similar projects in 
the City of Fayetteville have demonstrated costs of approximately $3500 - $4000 per mile per 
year. Based on these costs and the portion of the project in Bella Vista, the City may incur 
approximately $1,000 per year in maintenance costs.  
 
ATTACHMENT: ORDINANCE  RESOLUTION     OTHER  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval on the resolution. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 Motion to adopt  
 
 
 
 
 





RESOLUTION NO. 2016-___ 
 

EXPRESSING THE WILLINGNESS OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO SUPPORT A 
RECREATIONAL TRAILS PROGRAM GRANT APPLICATION BY THE NORTHWEST 

ARKANSAS TRAILBLAZERS, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES   
 
 WHEREAS, the Arkansas Highway and Transportation Department (AHTD) 
administers the Recreational Trails Program (RTP) to which governmental entities and 
non-profit organizations can apply to fund a variety of purposes related to alternative 
transportation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Northwest Arkansas Trailblazers intends to file a grant 
application for construction funding of an extension of the Razorback Regional 
Greenway northward into Bella Vista from the Veterans Wall of Honor to Bank of the 
Ozarks in Sugar Creek Center; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Northwest Arkansas Trailblazers intends to donate that section 
of the trail in Bella Vista and either rights-of-way or easements dedicated for access to 
the trail after construction to the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Recreational Trail Program requires that maintenance be 

provided after construction.  
 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Bella Vista: 
 
 Section 1: The City of Bella Vista hereby pledges its support of the Northwest 
Arkansas Trailblazers to apply for RTP funding from AHTD to expand the Razorback 
Regional Greenway in Bella Vista. 
 

Section 2: The City of Bella Vista further agrees to maintain that portion of the 
facility within the municipal limits if constructed and awarded. 

 
Section 3: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to draft and execute 

such agreements that are necessary with the Northwest Arkansas Trailblazers to 
support its grant application and affect the maintenance of the trail facility if funded 
under the grant program. 

 
 
PASSED THIS ___ DAY OF ________________, 2016. 
 
Motion to adopt made by:  
Ayes:   
Nays:   
Motion:  



       
APPROVED: 

 
 
      ____________________________ 

ATTEST:      Mayor Peter Christie 
 
       

________________________ 
Wayne Jertson 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
       

________________________ 
Jason B. Kelley, Staff Attorney  
 
Requested by: Mayor Christie 
Prepared by: Christopher Suneson, PLA, Director of Community Development Services 



BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
BELLA VISTA, AR 

 
MEETING DATE:  May 23, 2016 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution 
 
ITEM TITLE: Surplus Vehicles 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Ken Farmer, Police Department 
 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION:  The attached resolution is requesting approval to dispose of 
surplus vehicles.  The vehicles are of age and mileage that they are no longer useful to the police 
department.  We plan to sell the vehicles at the Benton County Surplus Auction on June 11, 
2016. 
ATTACHMENT:  ORDINANCE ☐  RESOLUTION ☒  OTHER ☐ 
 
RECOMMENDATION:       
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
 

AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF CERTAIN SURPLUS CITY PROPERTY 
OF A COMBINED ESTIMATED VALUE OF MORE THAN $10,000 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA, 
ARKANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1:  The City Council of the City of Bella Vista, Arkansas hereby authorizes the 
sale at auction of surplus city property listed below, which has a combined estimated value of more 
than $10,000: 
 
2009  Ford Crown Vic                   2FAHP71V09X114361 
2010  Ford Crown Vic                   2FABP7BV8AX138576 
2010  Ford Crown Vic                   2FABP7BVXAX138577 
2010  Dodge Charger                   2B3AA4CT7AH188920 
2010 Dodge Charger                    2B3AA4CT9AH188921 
2011  Dodge Charger                   2B3CL1CG2BH555745. 
 
 
 PASSED THIS ______ DAY OF ________________________, 2016. 
 
        

APPROVED: 
 
    
             
       ____________________________________ 
       Mayor Peter Christie 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Clerk Wayne Jertson 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jason B. Kelley 
Staff Attorney 
 
Requested by Mayor Christie 
Prepared by Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 


	052316 Agenda Reg City Council
	III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE;
	VII. REPORTS:
	IX. NEW BUSINESS:
	ADJOURNMENT

	042516CC Regular Meeting Minutes
	ab-CC Action Form -Revised Sec 18-20 03-15-16
	a-Ordinance Revised Sec 18-20 03-15-16
	b-Ordinance Special Meetings
	ca-Bella Vista Action Form - Knox Box revisions in MuniCode 103-48c
	cb-Knox Box code changes for CC
	c-Ordinance Key Box
	d-Ordinance Pigeons
	e-Trail Rules Ordinance
	fa-Bella Vista Action Form - accepting easement dedications Haley Rd 05-11-16
	fb-MX-4141N_20160510_114942
	f-Ord 2015- accepting easement dedications Haley Rd 05-11-16
	g-Ordinance-Sale of City Property
	ha-2016 Road Materials Bunker Memo
	hb-2016 InvitationtoBid-Road Materials Bunker
	h-Resolution Luttrell Materials Bunker
	i-Resolution for Riordan Rd Trail TAP application 05-11-16
	ja-CC Action Form - Resolution for CDS budget adjustment 05-11-16
	j-Resolution for CDS Budget Adjustment 05-11-16
	ka-CC Action Form - Resolution for Razorback Greenway RTP application 05-11-16
	kb-RRG BV Ext Phase 1 (1-27-16)
	k-Resolution for Razorback Greenway RTP application 05-11-16
	la-surpluscars16
	l-Resolution Auction Sale Property



